
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

7:00 P.M., OCTOBER 25, 2011 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD 

SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA  94585 
 

Next Resolution No. PC11-15 

1.  ROLL CALL:  
 
Chairperson Clemente 
Vice-Chair Wade 
Commissioner Adeva 
Commissioner Harris 
Commissioner Holzwarth 
Commissioner Mirador 
Commissioner Ramos 
 
2.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
None 
 
3.  MINUTES: 
 
Approval of September 27, 2011 Planning Commission Minutes. 
 
4.  AUDIENCE COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
This is a time for public comments for items that are not listed on this agenda.  Comments should be brief.  If you 
have an item that will require extended discussion, please request the item be scheduled on a future agenda. 
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

For each of the following items, the public will be given an opportunity to speak.  After a Staff Report, the Chair 
will open the Public Hearing.  At that time, the applicant will be allowed to make a presentation.  Members of 
the public will then be allowed to speak.  After all have spoken, the applicant is allowed to respond to issues 
raised by the public, after which the Public Hearing is normally closed.  Comments should be brief and to the 
point.  The Chair reserves the right to limit repetitious or non-related comments.  The public is reminded that 
all decisions of the Planning Commission are appealable to the City Council by filing a written Notice of 
Appeal with the City Clerk within ten (10) calendar days. 

 

 

 A. A Resolution of the City of Suisun City Regarding Review of Conditional Use Permit No. 

UP09/10-002, Including Conditions of Approval, for the Continued Operation of a 

Bar/Lounge at 627 Main Street 
 

  Adoption of Resolution No.  PC11-___-. 
 

 B. A Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Variance 

Application No. VR11/2-001: To Allow an Awning to be Constructed at a Depth of Five Feet 

at 605 Main Street (APN 0032-122-020) 
 

  Adoption of Resolution No.  PC11-___-. 
 



Planning Commission Agenda 

October 25, 2011 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 C. A Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Site 

Plan/Architectural Review Application AR11/2-003 for a Remodel of the Commercial 

Building at 109 Sunset Avenue (APN 0173-390-050) 
 

  Adoption of Resolution No.  PC11-___. 
 

  
6.  GENERAL BUSINESS:  Action to be taken where appropriate. 
 
 General Plan Update 
 

7.  COMMUNICATIONS: 

 

 A. Staff 

 B. Commissioners 

 C. Agenda Forecast 

 

8.  ADJOURN. 

a&m/111015.pca 



MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

7:00 P.M., SEPTEMBER 27, 2011 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD 

SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA  94585 
 

Next Resolution No. PC11-14 
1.  ROLL CALL:  
 
Chairperson Clemente 
Vice-Chair Wade 
Commissioner Adeva 
Commissioner Harris 
Commissioner Holzwarth 
Commissioner Mirador 
Commissioner Ramos 
 
2.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
None 
 
3.  MINUTES: 
 
Commissioner Wade moved to approve the September 13, 2011 Planning Commission Minutes.  Commissioner Mirador 
seconded the motion.  Motion passed 7-0. 
 
4.  AUDIENCE COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
None 
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. A Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Site Plan/Architectural Review 

Application SP11/2-002 for a Remodel of the Suisun City Senior Center Located at 318 Merganser Drive 

(0173-010-220). 

 

John Kearns presented the staff report.  He explained that the City had been awarded a Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) General Allocation for the rehabilitation of the Senior Center.  He further stated that on March 1, 2011 the 

City Council adopted a resolution allowing the City Manager to execute a contract for professional services with the 

consultant and Monez Architecture has provided the City with construction plans and specifications for the renovation 

project.  Mr. Kearns explained that the project would include the following: 

 

 New roofing (GAP Composition Shingle Timberline Cool Roof, Barkwood or Weather Wood) 

 New pop-out bay on Merganser Drive side 

 New entry vestibule with new bi-parting entry doors on east side 

 New exterior paint – Two possible examples have been given for Planning Commission discussion. 

“Crossroads” with “Milkweed”/ “Bison Beige” accents or “Pigeon Gray” with “Wharf View”/ “Bone”/ “Bison 

Beige” accents 

 New accessible entry ramp and revised accessible parking 

 New trash enclosure compliant with current Health codes 

 New double glazed windows 

 Repair of existing dry rot 

 New HVAC units 

 

Mr. Kearns stated that Casa de Suisun Apartments which is next to the Senior Center expressed a desire to see a 

coordination in the color schemes with surrounding buildings.  Mr. Kearns explained that a condition was included which 

would give authority to the Community Development Director to approve the final color decision. 



Planning Commission Agenda 

September 27, 2011 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

April Wooden stated that, although it was fine that the Commission looked at the interior changes, the Planning 

Commission action was for the exterior changes only.  She further stated that this item was being  presented to the City 

Council at its next meeting and, should the Council make color changes, the additional condition of approval gives the 

Community Development Director the flexibility to work with those Council changes. 

 

Chairperson Clemente opened the Public Hearing. 

 

Karen Mickens, Senior Center Coordinator, stated that the seniors were very excited about the project.  She stated that the 

seniors had outgrown the current building configuration and were looking forward to all the changes. 

 

Hearing no further comments Chairperson Clemente closed the Public Hearing. 

 

The Commission discussed the interior changes, new roof, exterior colors and relocation of activities during construction. 

 
Commissioner Adeva moved to approve Resolution No. PC 11-14 with the additional condition of approval giving the 
Community Development Director the flexibility to approve the final color selections.  Commissioner Holzwarth seconded 
the motion.  Motion passed 7-0. 
 

6.  GENERAL BUSINESS:  Action to be taken where appropriate. 
 
General Plan Update 
 
Ms. Wooden stated that the Preferred Land Use Alternatives would be on the City Council October 4 2011 agenda.   She 
also stated that the policies and tasks related to the GP would be on the Commission agenda in the future months. 

 
7.  COMMUNICATIONS: 

 A. Staff:  None 

 B. Commissioners:  Commissioner Harris asked if In Shape had submitted an extension for their 
trailer/banner which was to have been gone in July.  Mr. Kearns stated that none had been submitted at this time.  
Ms. Wooden stated that staff would look into the matter and if it was not gone by the next meeting it would be 
placed on the next agenda.  Mr. Kearns stated that the facility was due to open on November 1 and hoped it would 
be removed prior to the opening.   

 
Commissioner Ramos voiced concern about a possible safety hazard in the sidewalk where the trees had been 
removed at the north end of the parking lot at the Theater/Lawler House parking area.  

 C. Agenda Forecast:  Mr. Kearns stated that 627 Main Street CUP review would be on the next agenda.  He 
explained to the Commission that La Cabana’s CUP review would be placed on the December agenda and that 
Demitri’s Lounge did not have a condition requiring review but that the Commission could request review at any 
time based on complaints.   

 

8.  ADJOURN. 

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 7:55 pm.    

 

 

_______________________________ 

Anita Skinner, Commission Secretary 

a&m/110927.pca 



PREPARED BY: John Kearns, Associate Planner 

REVIEWED/APPROVED BY: April Wooden, Community Development Director 

 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 25, 2011 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING: Resolution PC11-___; A 

Resolution of the City of Suisun City Regarding Review of Conditional Use Permit No. UP09/10-

002, Including Conditions of Approval, for the Continued Operation of a Bar/Lounge at 627 Main 

Street. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: This project is categorically exempt from the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), under Section 15301, Existing Facilities. 

 

BACKGROUND: In August 2009 the applicant applied for and received approval of a 

Conditional Use Permit for a bar/lounge at 627 Main Street. As a part of the conditions of 

approval, condition No. 15 stated that “The Planning Commission shall review the Conditional 

Use Permit in six (6) months to evaluate the effectiveness of the conditions and to clarify the 

specific night-time activities that are proposed for continued use at the location.  No additional 

fees are required to be paid for the six-month review”. The Planning Commission held its initial 

6-month review on February 23, 2010. At this meeting the Commission chose to adopt a 

resolution with the same conditions as the original approval and a second six-month review was 

completed on September 28, 2010.   

 

STAFF REPORT:  The Downtown Waterfront Specific Plan indicates “Entertainment, nightclub 

and bar/lounge uses where food service is not the primary purpose of the business” are 

conditionally permitted uses in the Main Street Commercial District. The Planning Commission 

approved a Conditional Use Permit on August 11, 2009 and again on February 23, 2010 and 

September 28, 2010 that included seventeen (17) conditions. These conditions are included in the 

attached resolution, with a proposed revision to Condition 15 (see below). 

 

The business owner has provided night-time entertainment including live DJ’s, dancing, and 

karaoke. The business owner would like to continue operating his business in the same manner. 

 

Staff met with Suisun City Police Department and collected information that three complaints were 

received regarding the noise related concerns for the use. As a result of receiving these complaints, 

staff has met with the business owner to remind him of the conditions of approval. It is important to 

note that the Police Department has purchased a noise measuring device that can be used to measure 

levels in response to any complaint received. 

 

Required Findings 

In order for the Planning Commission to approve the conditional use permit the following findings 

must be made: 

 



1. The proposed location of the use is consistent with the Goals, Objectives and Policies of the 

Amended Downtown Waterfront Specific Plan, and the purposes of the zoning district in 

which the site is located. 

 

2. The proposed location of the Conditional Use and the proposed conditions under which it 

would be operated and maintained are consistent with the General Plan. 

 

3. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare of persons 

residing or working in or adjacent to the neighborhood of such use, nor detrimental to 

properties or improvements in the vicinity, or to the general welfare of the City.  

 

4. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) per Section 15301: Existing Facilities. 

 

5. The conditions of approval adopted on August 11, 2009 have proved to be effective and 

efficient when placed on this use at this location. 

 

Evidence in Support of the Findings 

The proposed use is conditionally permitted, pursuant to the Amended Downtown Waterfront 

Specific Plan and Title 18 of the Municipal Code.  The proposed use as conditioned is consistent 

with the General Plan.  With the imposition of the recommended conditions designed to preclude 

adverse impacts from the proposed use, the conditional use will not be detrimental to the public 

health, safety, or welfare of persons residing or working in the area, nor will it be detrimental to the 

general welfare of the City.  Should the City receive numerous complaints regarding the operation, 

the Planning Commission may review the CUP to determine whether additional conditions should 

be imposed or whether the use permit should be terminated.  The Planning Staff has determined 

that the proposed use is categorically exempt from the requirements of CEQA per Section 15301: 

Existing Facilities. 

 

Proposed Revision of Condition 15 

Staff recommends that Condition 15 be amended to provide for the next Planning Commission 

review in 24 months.  Should any concerns arise, the Planning Commission retains the authority to 

review the use permit at any time. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution PC11-___; A Resolution of the City of 

Suisun City Planning Commission Regarding Review of Conditional Use Permit No. UP09/10-002, 

Including Conditions of Approval, for the Continued Operation of a Bar/Lounge at 627 Main Street. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution PC11-___; A Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning 

Commission Regarding Review of Conditional Use Permit No. UP09/10-002, 

Including Conditions of Approval, for the Continued Operation of a Bar/Lounge at 

627 Main Street. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. PC11- 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGARDING REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. UP09/10-003,  

INCLUDING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE CONTINUED OPERATION OF A 

BAR/LOUNGE AT 627 MAIN STREET 

  
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at a regular meeting on October 25, 2011 did conduct the 

required review for Conditional Use Permit Application No. 09/10-002 for the operation of a bar/lounge at  

627 Main Street; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the public notice was published in the Daily Republic on October 15, 2011; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its regular meeting of August 11, 2009 did approve 

Conditional Use Permit No. 09/10-002 for the operation of a bar/lounge at 627 Main Street subject to 17 

conditions; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a report by the City Staff was presented and made a part of the recommendations of 

said meeting; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the applicant and members of the public were present to speak on the application; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Conditional Use Permit application is exempt from the analysis required by the 

State of California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Section 15301 Existing Facilities; and   

 

 WHEREAS, based on evidence presented at the Public Hearing, the following Findings are 

hereby made:  

 

1. The proposed location of the use is consistent with the Goals, Objectives and Policies of the 

Amended Downtown Waterfront Specific Plan, and the purposes of the zoning district in which the 

site is located. 

 

2. The proposed location of the Conditional Use and the proposed conditions under which it would be 

operated and maintained are consistent with the General Plan. 

 

3. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare of persons residing 

or working in or adjacent to the neighborhood of such use, nor detrimental to properties or 

improvements in the vicinity, or to the general welfare of the City. 

 

4. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 

Act (CEQA) per Section 15301: Existing Facilities. 

 

5. The conditions of approval adopted on August 11, 2009 have proved to be effective and efficient 

when placed on this use at this location. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Planning Commission of the City of Suisun 

City does hereby reaffirm that the required review of Conditional Use Permit Application No. 09/10-002, 

including conditions of approval, was conducted for the continued operation of a nightclub at 627 Main 

Street, subject to the following Conditions and all other Suisun City Codes and Ordinances and state and 

federal law: 

 

1. The approved plan and use shall be, in all material aspects, the same as the plans and proposed 

use(s) submitted as part of this application.  Occupancy shall be calculated excluding the upstairs 

banquet room. 

 



 

 

2. Upon the sale of the business by the owner/operator, Soo Kun Song, the Conditional Use Permit 

shall be void and a new Conditional Use Permit application must be filed with the Planning 

Department prior to continuation of the conditional use. 

 

3. The hours of operation for the bar/lounge shall be from 9:30 P.M. to 2:00 A.M Wednesday 

through Saturday.  Only karaoke is permitted on Wednesday and Thursday and a D.J. is permitted 

on Friday and Saturday. 

 

4. Security personnel shall limit patrons to those over the age of 21 during operation of the 

bar/lounge. 

 

5. The approved conditional uses shall be as follow: Primary use is service of liquor and a limited 

food menu; ancillary uses include a DJ, karaoke, and/or dancing. 

 

6. The owner/operator shall ensure that the business does not cause excessive noise outside the 

premises which would be deemed a nuisance.  Noise level shall not exceed 90 (ninety) decibels 

(db) measured at the property line. 

 

7. In the event that the City receives a complaint from an occupant of a neighboring residential 

property concerning excessive noise generated by the business, the City shall measure the levels 

of such noise emanating from the premises by using a professional noise metering device.  The 

readings shall be measured at the location of the residence from which the complaint was 

received with the doors to the bar/lounge closed.   If the noise generated by the business is found 

to be above 65db at the residence, as measured in the above manner, then the owner/operator 

shall take appropriate measures to mitigate the noise to levels 65db or below.  Should the 

owner/occupant fail to mitigate the noise to levels 65db or below, then the City shall review this 

use permit and add or change conditions to abate the nuisance. 

 

8. The owner/operator shall provide adequate monitoring, supervision, and security inside and 

outside the Premises.  Security personnel shall wear apparel which clearly identifies them as 

security personnel.  Security personnel shall keep the sidewalks surrounding the property clear of 

excessive congregating which may prevent the safe passage of pedestrians.  Patrons shall be 

encouraged to smoke on the east side of Main Street.  Appropriate supervision of patrons shall 

occur at all times.  Not less than three (3) security personnel shall be on the premises at all times 

of operation of the bar/lounge.  Following the occurrence of two or more service calls to police 

within any consecutive thirty-day period or in the event that law enforcement personnel are 

caused to issue a verbal warning, citation or arrest to any employee or patron of the business, the 

City shall have the right to require the owner/operator to increase the number of security 

personnel. 

 

9. Owner/operator shall comply with all Alcoholic Beverage Commission regulations, including 

directing bartenders and security personnel to identify patrons that are intoxicated and to refuse 

serving of alcohol to such patrons.   

 

10. Whenever music is playing or karaoke is being performed, all windows and doors shall remain 

closed except for reasonable ingress and egress. 

 

11. The owner/operator shall keep the immediate area outside the building, including the sidewalks, 

clean and litter free by providing at least one trash receptacle and one cigarette disposal 

receptacle.  

 



 

 

12. A dress code that prohibits hats, du-rags, athletic apparel, and other inappropriate attire shall be 

enforced after 9:30 p.m.    

 

13. Upon the first call for police service during hours of operation of the bar/lounge, if the Police 

Chief and Community Development Director agree that the incident warrants review, the 

Conditional Use Permit shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission. If necessary, additional 

conditions may be imposed or the permit may be revoked. 

 

14. The use shall conform to all local, state, and federal laws and regulations. 

 

15. The Planning Commission shall review the Conditional Use Permit in 24 months to evaluate the 

effectiveness of the conditions and to clarify the specific night-time activities that are proposed 

for continued use at the location.  No additional fees are required to be paid for this review.  

 

16. In the event that the city determines that additional police presence is required in the area due to 

the nighttime activities, the owner/operator shall financially participate in the provision of service 

based on a pro-rata share of the cost. 

 

17. No “heavy metal”, “gangsta rap” or music that includes profanity or lyrics referencing violence is 

permitted at any time. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission reaffirms that the required 12-

month review of Conditional Use Permit Application No. 09/10-002, including conditions of approval, was 

conducted for the continued operation of a bar/lounge at 627 Main Street and as provided in the 

applications materials, staff report and conditions. 

 

The forgoing motion was made by Commissioner _____ and seconded by Commissioner _____ 

and carried by the folowing vote:  

 

AYES: Commissioners:  

NOES: Commissioners:  

ABSENT: Commissioners:  

ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  

 

 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 25
th
 day of October 2011. 

 

 

 

Anita Skinner 

     Commission Secretary 



PREPARED BY: John Kearns, Associate Planner  

REVIEWED/APPROVED BY: April Wooden, Community Development Director 

 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 25, 2011 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING: Resolution PC11-___; A 

Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Variance Application No. 

VR11/2-001: To Allow an Awning to be Constructed at a Depth of Five Feet at 605 Main Street 

(APN 0032-122-020). 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: This project is categorically exempt from the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), under Section 15311: Accessory Structures. 

 

BACKGROUND: In approximately 1992, the owner of the building at 605 Main Street (who 

also owns 603 Main Street) received a building permit for an awning measuring 4’6” in depth. 

After almost 20 years the awning was beginning to fail and no longer serve its original intended 

purpose. As part of a larger overall project, taken on by the owner to improve the exteriors of 

both 603 and 605 Main Street, the owner approached staff regarding a new awning with an 

added depth of 6” to be located at 605 Main Street. Staff explained the current regulations of the 

Downtown Waterfront Specific Plan and that a Variance application would need to brought 

before and approved by the Planning Commission. 

 

STAFF REPORT: Section 7.5.E.3.b of the Downtown Waterfront Specific Plan controls the area 

for signs, including signs on awnings, and states “The maximum area of signing noted above shall 

apply to all wall, window, and projecting signs and signs painted on awnings. Further projecting 

signs shall not exceed twenty (20) square feet per face and shall not project more than four (4) feet 

from the wall.” For this reason, the applicant was told he would need to apply for a variance. 

 

Because the building’s façade design includes a large amount of glass, users of the building would 

be subject to a prolonged amount of sunlight according to the applicant. The added depth of the 

awning would protect patrons from sunlight and also allow for patrons standing outside the 

building to be protected from the elements if (for example) they were waiting for the bus that has a 

stop in front of the site.  

 

Planning Commission Findings: 

 

In order for the Planning Commission to grant a variance, according to Section 8.6.B.6.b of the 

Downtown Waterfront Specific Plan “Variances”, the following findings must be made: 

 

 That the strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified regulation would 

result in practical difficulty or unnecessary physical hardship inconsistent with the Goals, 

Objectives and Policies of this Plan. 

 That there are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to the 

property involved or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to 

other properties in the same district. 



 That strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified regulation would 

deprive the applicant of privileges enjoyed by other owners of other properties in the 

same district. 

 That the granting of the Variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or 

welfare, or materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. 

 

Staff has reviewed the request for a variance and has noted at least two other “signs” along Main 

Street that have a depth of approximately five feet. Both of these have been in place for many 

years; likely prior to the regulations of the Specific Plan.  

 

Staff believes that the required findings can be made because: 

 One intent of the Specific Plan is to encourage the improvement and development of 

businesses in the downtown and the request for a slightly larger awning, consistent with 

neighboring signs and awnings, would meet that intent. 

 The extensive use of glass on the front of the building in question creates a need for a 

slightly larger awning for greater protection from light and glare. 

 Since owners of other properties in the same district have been allowed to install 

signs/awnings with a depth of five feet, the approval of the variance application would 

not be inconsistent with the surrounding uses within the Main Street Commercial District 

and strict interpretation of the regulation would deprive the applicant of privileges 

enjoyed by other neighboring owners. 

 The awning will be both attractive and functional, so the granting of the variance will not 

be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, or materially injurious to properties 

or improvements in the vicinity. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution PC11-___; A Resolution of the City of Suisun City 

Planning Commission Approving Variance Application No. VR11/2-001: To Allow an Awning to 

be Constructed at a Depth of Five Feet at 605 Main Street (APN 0032-122-020). 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution PC11-___ 

2. Proposed Plan 



 RESOLUTION NO. PC 11-__ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

APPROVING VARIANCE APPLICATION NO. VR11/2-001: TO ALLOW AN AWNING 

TO BE CONSTRUCTED AT A DEPTH OF FIVE FEET AT 605 MAIN STREET  

(APN 0032-122-020) 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its regular meeting of October 25, 2011, did 

review application VR11/2-001 To Allow an Awning to be Constructed at a Depth of Five Feet at 

605 Main Street; and 

 

WHEREAS, the public hearing notice was published in the Daily Republic on October 15, 

2011, and mailed to individual property owners on October 13, 2011; and 

 

WHEREAS, a report by the City Staff was presented and made a part of the record of said 

meeting; and 

 

 WHEREAS, all relevant City regulations and ordinances have been considered in relation to 

this project; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per Section 15311; and 

 

 WHEREAS, based on evidence presented to the Planning Commission by City Staff and the 

applicant, the following Findings are hereby made: 

 

1. That the strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified regulation would 

result in practical difficulty or unnecessary physical hardship inconsistent with the Goals, 

Objectives and Policies of this Plan. 

2. That there are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to the 

property involved or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to 

other properties in the same district. 

3. That strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified regulation would 

deprive the applicant of privileges enjoyed by other owners of other properties in the 

same district. 

4. That the granting of the Variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or 

welfare, or materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Planning Commission of the City of 

Suisun City does hereby approve the Variance Application subject to the following Conditions 

and all other local, state, and federal requirements: 

 

1. The applicant must apply for and be granted a building permit. 

2. The applicant must apply for and be granted a revocable encroachment permit. 

 

The foregoing motion was made by Commissioner ___________ and seconded by 

Commissioner ___________ and carried by the following vote: 

 

AYES: Commissioners:    

NOES: Commissioners:    



 

ABSENT: Commissioners:    

ABSTAIN: Commissioners:    

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 25
th

 day of October 2011. 

 

 

   

                Anita Skinner, Commission Secretary 
 

  







PREPARED BY: John Kearns, Associate Planner 

REVIEWED/APPROVED BY: April Wooden, Community Development Director 

 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

 

MEETING DATE:  October 25, 2011 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING:  Resolution PC11-___; A 

Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning Commission Approving Site Plan/Architectural 

Review Application AR11/2-003 for a Remodel of the Commercial Building at 109 Sunset Avenue 

(APN 0173-390-050) 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The project has been found to be exempt from the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per Section 15301: Existing Facilities. 

 

BACKGROUND: The building at 109 Sunset Avenue was built in 1984 as a 4,010 square foot 

building. Since that time there have been applications brought forward to the Planning 

Commission for modifications to the building and/or site; most notably the addition of a 

McDonald’s Playplace, but construction never commenced. It is important to note that the 

current application does not include the addition of a Playplace. 

 

STAFF REPORT: The applicant, McDonald’s Corporation, have submitted plans for Planning 

Commission consideration prepared by their architect Ware Malcomb. The scope of work for the 

proposed renovation includes: 

 

 An addition of 133 square feet to the drive-thru cash booth to allow for a more efficient 

operation. 

 An exterior renovation to the building exterior façade to remove the existing mansard 

roofs, add canopies, use a warmer color scheme, and add accent arcade elements for 

purposes of emphasis. 

 New Ornamental extruded metal parapet. 

 Provide new bicycle racks. 

 The addition of a second menu board and order display. 

 Minor adjustments to drive-thru to ensure optimal vehicular maneuverability. 

 Upgrade building signage. 

 Provide required site ADA improvements. 

 New pavement markings. 

 

Proposed Color Scheme 

 

Base Color-Earthly Russet (Benjamin Moore 2173-10) 

Accent Color-Aztec Brick (Benjamin Moore 2175-10) 

Arcades-Snow-White (Benjamin Moore 2122-70) 

Canopy-Yolk-(Benjamin Moore 2023-10) 

Trellis/Band-Clear anodized aluminum 

 



The McDonald’s building is one of four pad buildings along the east side of Sunset Avenue. In 

2004, the multi-tenant building at 193 Sunset Avenue was approved by the Planning 

Commission and in 2005 Taco Bell received Planning Commission approval for an exterior 

remodel. Staff has worked closely with the applicant and believes that the subject application is 

consistent with other applications that the Commission has approved in the past. Additionally, 

staff believes that the applicant has been mindful of the existing conditions of the site and has 

proposed an attractive design that will complement the surrounding uses. 

 

Proposed Planning Commission Findings 

 

1. Notice has been given in the time and in the manner required by State Law and  

City Code because a public notice was published on October 15
th

 in the Daily 

Republic newspaper and mailed to surrounding property owners on October 13
th

. 

 

2. That the proposed project, when subject to the conditions will not conflict with the 

Goals, Objectives, and Policies of the General Plan, and the purposes of the zoning 

district in which the site is located, because the General Commercial General Plan 

designation and General Commercial Zoning classification permit this type of use 

and the proposed improvements meet the purpose of the zoning district. 

 

3. That the proposed project and its uses, when subject to the conditions, will not be 

detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare of persons residing or working in 

or adjacent to the neighborhood of such use, nor detrimental to properties or 

improvements in the vicinity, or to the general welfare of the City, because the 

project’s design in regard to exterior treatments of the building are designed to 

soften the impact of the proposed construction. 

 

4. That the proposed project has been considered through a Site Plan /Architectural 

Review process as required by Suisun Zoning Ordinance as the public hearing took 

place on October 25
th

 and testimony and materials were considered by the Planning 

Commission prior to adoption of the resolution. 

 

5. The project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per 

Section 15301: Existing Facilities because the building and use are existing and the 

proposed addition of 133 square feet is less than 50% of the existing floor area. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Planning Commission: 

 

1. Open the Public Hearing; 

 

2. Close the Public Hearing; 

 

3. Adopt Resolution No. PC11-__: A Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning 

Commission Approving Site Plan/Architectural Review Application SP11/2-003 for a 

Remodel of the Commercial Building at 109 Sunset Avenue (APN 0173-390-050) 

 



ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Adopt Resolution No. PC11-__: A Resolution of the City of Suisun City Planning 

Commission Approving Site Plan/Architectural Review Application SP11/2-003 for a 

Remodel of the Commercial Building at 109 Sunset Avenue (APN 0173-390-050) 

 

2. Project Plans 

 



RESOLUTION NO. PC11- 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF SUISUN 

CITY APPROVING SITE PLAN/ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW APPLICATION NO. AR 

11/2-003 FOR A REMODEL OF THE COMMERCIAL BUILDING AT 109 SUNSET 

AVENUE (APN 0173-390-050) 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its regular meeting on October 25, 2011 did 

review the application for the approval of Site Plan/Architectural Review No. SP/AR 11/2-003; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, notices for the public hearing were published in the Daily Republic on 

October 15, 2011 for the Planning Commission and notices were mailed to individual property 

owners within 300 feet on October 13, 2011; and    

 

 WHEREAS, a report by the City Staff was presented and made a part of the record of 

said meeting; and 

 

  WHEREAS, this project has been considered for compliance with all city regulations and 

ordinances; and 

 

 WHEREAS, based on evidence presented at the Public Hearing by City Staff, the 

applicant, the public, and Commissioners, the following Findings are hereby made:  

 

1. Notice has been given in the time and in the manner required by State Law and  

City Code because a public notice was published on October 15
th

 in the Daily 

Republic newspaper and mailed to surrounding property owners on October 13
th

. 

 

2. That the proposed project, when subject to the conditions will not conflict with the 

Goals, Objectives, and Policies of the General Plan, and the purposes of the zoning 

district in which the site is located, because the General Commercial General Plan 

designation and General Commercial Zoning classification permit this type of use 

and the proposed improvements meet the purpose of the zoning district. 

 

3. That the proposed project and its uses, when subject to the conditions, will not be 

detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare of persons residing or working in 

or adjacent to the neighborhood of such use, nor detrimental to properties or 

improvements in the vicinity, or to the general welfare of the City, because the 

project’s design in regard to exterior treatments of the building are designed to 

soften the impact of the proposed construction. 

 

4. That the proposed project has been considered through a Site Plan /Architectural 

Review process as required by Suisun Zoning Ordinance as the public hearing took 

place on October 25
th

 and testimony and materials were considered by the Planning 

Commission prior to adoption of the resolution. 



 

 

 

5. The project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per 

Section 15301: Existing Facilities because the building and use are existing and the 

proposed addition of 133 square feet is less than 50% of the existing floor area. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Planning Commission of the City of 

Suisun City does hereby approve Site Plan/Architectural Review Application No. AR 11/2-003; 

subject to the following Conditions and all other Suisun City Codes and Ordinances: 

 

General 

1. The Applicant agrees to defend and indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, 

agents, employees, volunteers, and representatives free and harmless from and against any 

and all claims, losses, damages, attorneys' fees, injuries, costs, and liabilities arising from 

any suit for damages or for equitable or injunctive relief which is filed against the City by 

reason of its approval of Applicant’s project. 

 

Building 

1. Applicant must apply for and be issued a building permit prior to initiation of 

construction. 

 

Planning 

1. The applicant must apply for and be granted a sign permit. 

2. The applicant must provide one more additional parking space as part of the project due 

to the additional square footage. 

3. Final landscape plans are to be submitted to and approved by the Community 

Development Director. 

 

Public Works 

1. The Applicant agrees to defend and indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, 

agents, employees, volunteers and representatives free and harmless from and against any 

and all claims, losses, damages, attorneys' fees, injuries, costs, and liabilities arising from 

any suit for damages or for equitable or injunctive relief which is filed against the City by 

reason of its approval of Applicant’s project. 

2. All work performed shall conform to these conditions as well as all City ordinances, rules, 

standard specifications and details, design standards, and any special requirements imposed 

by the City Engineer.  The Public Works Department will provide inspection to ensure 

conformance.  Any deviation from the aforementioned documents shall require review and 

written approval by the City Engineer.  

3. New or modified parking lot improvements shall comply with the City’s onsite parking 

standard for standard parking lot. 

4. All new or modified sidewalks, including those adjacent to the parking lots, shall comply 

with the City’s standards for curb, gutter and sidewalk. 

5. The Public Works Director may approve and/or negotiate minor changes or exceptions to 

Public Works Department conditions of approval. 



 

 

6. The Improvement Plans shall include a General Note that: any revisions to the approved 

Improvement Plans and/or City Standards, including those due to field conditions, shall 

require review and written approval by the City Engineer.  The Applicant shall have the 

revised plans prepared by the Project Professional Designer and shall have the revised plans 

submitted for review and approval by the City Engineer.  Any revisions to the Improvement 

Plans resulting from these or other conditions contained herein shall be subject to written 

approval of the City Engineer. 

7. The Applicant shall obtain all necessary permits from all applicable agencies prior to 

development. 

8. All work within the public right-of-way, which is to be performed by the Applicant, the 

general contractor, and all subcontractors shall be included within a single City 

Encroachment Permit issued by the City Public Works Department.  Issuance of the 

Encroachment Permit and payment of all appropriate fees shall be completed prior to 

commencement of work, and all work under the permit shall be completed prior to 

issuance of occupancy permit. 

9. The Applicant shall prepare a notice, subject to the review by the City Engineer, that lists 

all construction mitigation requirements, permitted hours of construction, and identifies a 

contact person as well as the Applicant who will respond to complaints related to the 

proposed construction. The notice shall be mailed to property owners and residents within 

a 300-foot radius from the subject site at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the start of 

construction. 

10. Any existing wells shall be abandoned per County of Solano Health Department 

standards prior to development of the property.  Owner shall submit documentation to the 

Public Works Director that this condition has been satisfied prior to any construction on 

this project. 

11. If any archaeological resources are found during the grading of the site or during 

performance of any work, work shall be halted, the City Engineer shall be notified and a 

certified archaeological firm shall be consulted for advice. 

12. Visual obstructions over three feet in height will not be allowed within the driver's sight 

triangle near driveways and corners in order to allow an unobstructed view of oncoming 

traffic. 

13. Any existing frontage, or street, improvements, or other public improvements which in 

the opinion of the City Engineer, become damaged as a part of the work shall be removed 

and replaced as required to the current City Standards, or as directed by the City 

Engineer. 

14. Dust control shall be in conformance with City Standards and Ordinances.  Vehicles 

hauling dirt or other construction debris from the site shall cover any open load with a 

tarpaulin or other secure covering to minimize dust emissions. 

15. New and modified driveways and curb ramps shall comply with the American Disability 

Act (ADA) regulations.  

16. New curb ramps with the public right-of-way shall utilize truncated domes (Armor Tile, 

“federal yellow” color).   



 

 

17. New water improvements shall comply with the most current Suisun Solano Water 

Authority design standards, standard specifications and standard details at the time of 

installation. 

18. Direct tapping of City or SSWA water mains is not permitted.  Applicant shall install the 

required fittings in the existing or new main lines to accommodate the proposed water 

system.  No existing water mains shall be shut down without specific permission of the 

City Engineer and the Solano Irrigation District. 

19. Upon the approval of the Improvement Plans, the Applicant shall submit electronic 

AutoCAD files of the plans to the Public Works Department.  Also, prior to the issuance 

of Certificate of Occupancy, the Applicant shall submit to the Public Works Department 

electronic AutoCAD files of the “as-built” Improvement Plans. 

20. The Applicant shall obtain all necessary permits for storm water discharges. 

21. The project will incorporate site design measures for reducing water quality impacts of 

the project, in compliance with the most current Suisun City National Pollutant Distance 

Elimination System (NPDES) stormwater permit Provision C.3. requirements. Guidance 

on approved site design measures is available from the Public Works.  Final approval for 

site design measures must be obtained from the Public Works Department. 

22. Applicants whose projects disturb less than one acre of soil and are not part of a larger 

common plan of development shall prepare and implement an abbreviated Storm Water 

Pollution Prevention Plan prior to the start of construction.  

23. The project shall use best management practices (BMPs) during construction to mitigate 

construction impacts and during post-construction to mitigate post-construction impacts 

to water quality.  

24. All projects creating, adding or replacing 10,000 square feet or more of impervious 

surface on the project site shall fill out completely and submit to the City the “New and 

Redevelopment Post Construction Stormwater Requirements Application”, attached to 

these conditions, no later than with development or grading plans.   

25. All projects creating, adding or replacing 10,000 square feet or more of impervious 

surface on the project site shall include the design and implementation of stormwater 

treatment measures.      

26. To limit pollutant generation, discharge and runoff to the maximum extent practicable, 

the project shall include stormwater pollution control measures listed within the 

document entitled “Storm Water Pollution Control Measures List”. This list is provided 

within Appendix B of the document entitled “Storm Water Requirements for 

Development Projects- Packet for Project Applicants”. 

27. The project shall utilize infiltration measures to reduce stormwater discharge to the 

greatest extent feasible.  

28. New or modified sidewalks shall be sloped to drain to adjacent vegetated park strips.  

29. Storm drain markings shall be placed at all new storm drain inlets and catch basins.  

Storm drain marking design shall be approved by the City Engineer. 

30. Improvement Plans shall include an Erosion Control Plan (or Storm Water Pollution 

Prevention Plan –SWPPP) for any grading during the rainy season (October 15 to April 

15).  No work shall be allowed during the rainy season without an approved and 

implemented Erosion Control Plan. 



 

 

31. Where feasible, runoff from impervious areas shall be channeled to pervious areas (e.g., 

park strips, vegetated planters) where possible prior to discharge to the storm drain.  

32. Where feasible, parking lots and other impervious areas shall be designed to drain 

stormwater runoff to vegetated drainage swales, filter strips, and/or other treatment 

devices that can be integrated into required landscaping areas and traffic islands prior to 

discharge into storm drain systems.  

33. Where feasible, curb cuts (one every 10 feet), tire stops, or other means shall be provided 

to protect landscaped areas and allow maximum flow of stormwater into landscaped 

areas.  

34. The Applicant shall update the existing trash enclose to comply with the Fairfield-Suisun 

Urban Runoff Management Program Detail SW-3, Trash Enclosure for 

Business/Commercial Facilities.  See attached CD for a copy of the detail. 

35. New landscaping and irrigation shall comply with the City’s Water Efficient Landscape 

Ordinance, City standard specifications and details, design standards, and any special 

requirements imposed by the City Engineer. 

 

 The forgoing motion was made by Commissioner ______ and seconded by Commissioner 

________and carried by the following vote:  

 

AYES: Commissioners:    

NOES: Commissioners:  

ABSENT: Commissioners:  

ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 25th day of October 2011. 

 

  

 

Anita Skinner 

Planning Commission Secretary 

 

 





CAUTION:   IF THIS SHEET IS NOT 24"x36" IT IS A REDUCED PRINT 

S
U

IS
U

N
  C

A
. 9

45
85

#0
04

-1
27

7

VICINITY MAP

ARCHITECT

OWNER REPRESENTATIVE

TI
TL

E
 S

H
E

E
T

T1.0

SHEET INDEXSITE DATA

#004-1277
SUISUN, CALIFORNIA 94585

109 SUNSET AVE.

McDonald's USA, LLC

SYMBOLS

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

PLANNING DEPARTMENT SUBMITTAL

PACIFIC SIERRA REGION

Thomas Baak and Associates LLP

12
N

PROJECT SITE



CAUTION:   IF THIS SHEET IS NOT 24"x36" IT IS A REDUCED PRINT 

S
U

IS
U

N
  C

A
. 9

45
85

#0
04

-1
27

7

FLOOR PLAN KEY NOTES WALL LEGEND

DEMOLITION FLOOR PLAN 1 PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN 2

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N

A1.0

N N



T

T T T T

T

T

Welcome

T

Welcome

T T

CAUTION:   IF THIS SHEET IS NOT 24"x36" IT IS A REDUCED PRINT 

S
U

IS
U

N
  C

A
. 9

45
85

#0
04

-1
27

7

EXISTING ELEVATIONS 5

PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION 4 PROPOSED NORTH  ELEVATION 3

ELEVATION NOTES

T

ELEVATION LEGEND

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
S

A2.0

PROPOSED EAST  ELEVATION 1PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION 2

2. WEST 1. EAST

4. SOUTH 3. NORTH



TYPICAL PARKING STALLS

CAUTION:   IF THIS SHEET IS NOT 24"x36" IT IS A REDUCED PRINT 

S
U

IS
U

N
  C

A
. 9

45
85

#0
04

-1
27

7

D
E

TA
IL

S

A3.0

CONCRETE LANDING

FIRE LANE CURB

ACCESSIBLE CURB RAMP

A - CURB RAMPS AT ACCESSIBLE PARKING AREAS

B - CURB RAMP PERPENDICULAR TO VEHICULAR WAY C - DIAGONAL CURB RAMP AT VEHICULAR WAYS

PRECAST CONCRETE WHEELSTOP

FIRELANE ENTRY SIGNAGE

FIRELANE SIGNAGE ACCESSIBLE STALL SYMBOL"NO PARKING" PAVEMENT MARKING

ACCESSIBLE SIGNS

OR

ACCESSIBLE DIRECTION SIGN

ACCESSIBLE  ENTRY SIGNAGE

VAN ACCESSIBLE SIGNAGE

12

10

9

8

5

4

37

6

1

11

13

NOT USED 14

CURB RAMP 15

16



CAUTION:   IF THIS SHEET IS NOT 24"x36" IT IS A REDUCED PRINT 

S
U

IS
U

N
  C

A
. 9

45
85

#0
04

-1
27

7

S
IT

E
 D

E
TA

IL
S

A3.1PAINTED 'DRIVE-THRU' WITH ARROW PAINTED 'THANK YOU'NOT USED 12NOT USED 16

NOT USED 15

NOT USED 14

NOT USED 13

NOT USED 11

1010

4

3

2

1

8

7

6

9NOT USED

NOT USED NOT USED

NOT USED

5NOT USED NOT USED

NOT USED

NOT USED



CAUTION:   IF THIS SHEET IS NOT 24"x36" IT IS A REDUCED PRINT 

S
U

IS
U

N
  C

A
. 9

45
85

#0
04

-1
27

7

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

SP.1

PROPOSED SITE PLAN 2DEMOLITION SITE PLAN 11

SITE LEGEND

1

1E

SITE PLAN NOTES

A
D

M
IR

A
L 

C
A

LL
A

G
H

A
N

 L
N

.

EXISTING
McDONALD'S

SINGLE STORY

PROPOSED
McDONALD'S

#004-1277
4,988 S.F.

SUNSET AVENUE SUNSET AVENUE
S

TA
TE

  H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 1
2

(R
IO

 V
IS

TA
 R

O
A

D
)

10E

15E
2E

7E

2

5E

13E

S
TA

TE
  H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 1

2
(R

IO
 V

IS
TA

 R
O

A
D

)




